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l. Name ot Property

historic name _First German Retformed Church

e _Deutsche Retformite
Reformed Church of Christ

2. Location

street & number 413 Wisconsin Avenue ' N/a not tor publication

city, town wWaukesha N/A  vicinity
state Wisconsin code WI county Wwaukesha code 133 Zip code H3l¥e

3. tilassitication

Ownership ot Property Category ot Property No. ot Resources withln Property
_X private | X building(s) contributing noncontributling
__ public-local __ district 1 __ builadings
___ pubiilc-state ____sSite - _____ sites
____ public-Federal ____structure - ____ structures
___ Object - _____ objects
1 U  Totat

Name ot related multiple property listing: No. of contributing resources
: previously listed 1in the
None . National Reglster U




4. State/Fegeral Agency cCertitication

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of LYoo,
as amended, 1 herepy certity that this _X nomination ___request tor determination
of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and protfessional
requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. in my opinion, the property _% meets
___does not meet the National Register criteria. __ See continuation sheect.

= 2/1(7)

Signature of gerf Date

State or Qpﬁerai agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property me2ts does not meet the National Register
criteria. See continuation sneet.

Signature of commenting or other ofricial Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park sService Certification
I, hereby, certify that this property is: tntered in the

cered in the Nati - . National Begistes
/ entered in the National Register. . B _
___ See continuation sheet ,%;éé;zﬁ%kbgfefﬁa;éZ%;? 2?4a§/€%/

determined eligible for the National
Register. See continuation sheet

determined not eligible for tne
National Register.

removed from the National Register.

____other, (explain:)

7&%1/ Signature of the Keeper vate
6. Functions or Use
Historic Functions Current Functions
{enter categories from instructions) {enter categories trom instructions)
RELIGION/religious structure RELIGION/reliqgious structure

RELIGION/cnhurch school RELIGIUN/church school




1. Description
Architectural Classlticatlon MATAYr1315
(enter categories trom instructions) (enter categories trom ilnstructions)

toundation Limestone

Late Victorian walils Brick
STucco
roor Asphalt
otner wood
shingle

Descripe present and historic physical appearance.

Description

This tine exampile or VvVictorian eclectic ecclesiastical design was Dpuilt by tne
congregation of tne Kirst German Rerormed Church in 1891 and it 1s siteda on & larqge
flat lot fronting on Wisconsin Avenue, one otf the city of Waukesha's most 1mportant
downtown thoroughtares. The earliest portion of the present church was Dullt of
cream brick on a limestone foundation in 1891 to the design of an unknown architect
and it consists of a 39-toot-wide by 7l-foot-long rectilinear plan nave whose
principal north-tacing tacade is bisected by 'a centrally piaced lU8-footr steeple. A
33-foot-square addition of similar design and construction was added to the east
elevation of the nave in 1924-25 and a large modern design T-plan brick-sided scnool
and office addition was attached to the southwest corner ot the west elevation in
1956. The church has been well maintained and is in excellent condition toaday.

The First German Reformed Church 1s located in an architecturally and historically
significant urban residential neighborhood that is situated just to the south or
Waukesha's downtown commercial section. The core ot this neignborhood is formed by
the public space known as Cutler's Park, originally a private park that containea the
Greek Revival style house of Waukesha founder Morris L. Cutler.* Wisconsin Avenue
forms the northern boundary of this park and during the period between 1868 ana L19:tu,
when Waukesha became a summer resort Ot importance in the Midwest, tne city's most
prominent citizens chose to buila their homes in the area surrounding the park.

These families lined the five-block length of the east-west running Wisconsin Avenue
with impressive churches and homes designed in a variety ot middle ana iate
nineteenth century styles.

wWaukesha's population grew from 2500 in L3870 to 874U by 1910 due to the city's
success as a summer resort during this period. By the turn-ot-the-century, however,
the i1mportance of the resort industry began to decline ana numerous manutacturing
concerns took their place in the city's economy; transforming wauxesnha's economic
base in the process. 7This transformation, coupled with Waukesha's ciose proximity to
the expanding Milwaukee metropolitan area, greatly increased the city's popuiation,
wnich by 1988 numpered 53,941, making 1t Wisconsin's eighth-largest city. +This
growth 1is now most evident in the many suburbs that surround the historic core ot the
city, but it has also had an impact on the downtown portion of the city as well.

Over the years the commercial sector of tne downtown has gradually encroached upon
the northern, Wisconsin Avenue edge of the residential neighborhood surrounding

* fhis house was built in 1845. Later, it was moved to 401 Central Avenue and it
was placed on the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) in October of 19383.
Wisconsin Avenue forms the northern boundary of Cutler's Park, North Grana Avenue
forms the eastern boundary, and the western boundary is tormed by Maple Avenue. The
First German Reformed Church is lLocated on the south side of Wisconsin Avenue just to
the west of Cutler's Park.

X See continuatlion sheet
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Cutler Park, and many of the large residences that once lined this street have since
been replaced with modern commercial buildings and parking lots. Fortunately,
though, nearly all ot this activity has occurred to the east ot the park ana that
area surrounding the First German Retformed Church has stayed 1ntact as a residentlait
neighbornood. Consequently, the stretch of Wisconsin Avenue upon whnich the churcn 1s
located still retains much ot 1ts historic appearance today.?

Waukesha is unusually fortunate in that it still retains almost all of its
historically and architecturally significant downtown churches. Most of these
churches are located withln a few blocks orf the First German Retormed Church and
among this outstanding group are two other churches Located on Wisconsin Avenue: the
High Victorian Gothic style First Baptist Church (1872) located at 247 wisconsin
Avenue, corner otr Wisconsin and North Grand Avenues; and the Richardsonian kRomanesgque
style First Methodist Church (18Y95-8), locatea at 171 Wisconsin Avenue.® ‘Tne tailt
steeples ot these three Wisconsin Avenue churches have l0ng been prominent lanamarks
in the community and the nomination ot the First German Retormea Church completes
the process of placing this important group of bulldings on the NRHP.

The 1891 Church Building

The 1891 church bullding forms the principal part of the church we see toaay and 1ts
exterior is still largely intact despite the two additions that were later attached
to it. This puilding was built at a cost of $80UU* and is a fine example of
Victorian eclectic architecture whose salient characteristic is tne combining of
elements associated with several different historic styles into buildings wnich
clearly owe a debt to the past but which are, never-the-iess, something gquite new in
themselves. As originally built the church consisted of a 39-toot-wide Dy 7l-toot-
long rectilinear plan one-story nave that rested on a raised pbasement story tasnioned
from coursed ashlar rock-taced Waukesha limestone blocks. “The exterior walis ot the
nave above the basement story are sided in a cream brick veneer over a wood frame and
the nave is then shelterea by a steeply pitched asphalt shingle-covered gable root
whose ridgeline runs north-south and whose gable ends face north and soutn as well.
The principal facade of the nave taces north and tronts on Wisconsin Avenue and 1t 1s
bisected by a large multi-part steeple. The east ana west-facing side elevations ot
the nave were originally identical in design and were each five-bays-wide. ‘I'ne rear
or south-facing elevation is three-bays-wide with most of it being given over to a
gable-roofed one-story centrally placea ell.

2 A group of tour outstanding houses located across the street trom the church was
placed on the NRHP as the Wisconsin Avenue Historic District in OCtoper otr Llyds.

3 Hoth ot these churches were also piaced on the NkHP in October and Decemper ot 1983
as part of the Multiple Resources ot Waukesha nomination.

4 Waukesha Freeman. January 7, 1892, pg. L.
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All the brick-claa wall surtaces on the north, east and west elevations or the l39L
church are aivided 1nto bays by thiln projectlng DricCk pilaster STtIips whicn are bpuilt
out from the main wall surtace and linkea to one another by a similar projecting
horizontal element placea just beiow the eaves ot the root above each bay, creating a
panelized effect. The depth of the panel is tnen emphasized by tne placement of two
brick corbel courses below the underside of the horizontal traming element ana by
placing a projecting ashiar limestone pilaster base at the foot of each pitasrter
strip where the pilaster strip abuts the limestone construction basement story.

The main (north-facing) facade of the 1891 design is symmetrical and three-pays-wide.
The rectilinear plan steeple forms the oversized center bay. ''he two sice bays.are
each ll-teet-wide, are both enframed in the manner described above, and the upper
member of the framework in both bays 1s angled sharply upward to reflect tne steep
pitch of the main roof. £Each of these bays contains a single tall semi-circular
arched window glazed in glass that is painted to depict scenes trom the Bible.

.These windows each have a cut stone sill .and help light the nave of the church. The
108~foot-tall steeple mass projects forward from the center of this tacade. lts base
measures ll-feet-deep by 17.5~feet-wide and rests on a raised limestone pasement
story that is a continuation of the coursed ashlar rock-tfaced Waukesha limestone
basement story that supports the walls of the nave.

The steeple is divided into three sections: tower; lantern; and spire. 'The tower
section 1s two-stories 1in height and 1is sided in brick. Each ot its three visible
exterior walls is one-bay-wide and is entramed in the manner describeg above.
Originaliy, the principal entrance to the nave of the church was via a targe seml-
circular arched opening placed in the center of the north-tacing tacade ot the

tower. Double doors then opened into a vestibule inside. ‘The outline of this
opening is still visible but the opening itselit was tilled 1n witn lannon stone
veneer when a new entrance vestibule was bullt on the west side of the nave in 1456
and a large stone cross was then atiixed to this new stone surface. A commemorative
tabiet made of marble is attached to the wall just above this opening ane upon it,
done in bas-relief, are the words "krste Deutsche Retormiete Kirche--Ll8bb, ly9l."
Above tnis tablet, centered in the second story ot the tower, is a tall semi-circular
arched window that is glazea in glass painted to depict a scene from the Biple. This
window helps light a balcony that runs across the north ena of the interior or tne
nave. ldentical windows are also positioned in the centers of each of the two tloors
of the east and west-facing side elevations of the tower. Both the two first floor
windows light the entrance vestibule insiade while the second floor windows also lignt
the balcony. The tower is then terminated approximately ten feet below the ridgeline
of the roof of the nave by a pent roof that encircles its tront and side elevations.

The lantern section of the steeple 15 slightly smaller in dimension than the tower
section below it and it is one-story in height and is square in plan. This section
is sided in clapboard and each of its four elevations consists of a single large
panel of clapboard that is enframed with horizontal and vertical boards. Each panel
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is then further subdivided into three smaller sections (two wider side sections
flanking a smaller center section) by two more vertical boards. ‘here are no
openings in any ot the elevatlions of the lantern although the soutn-facing elevation
is partially covered by the upper portion ot the north-tacing gable end or tne main
roof. This section is then surmounted by a wide wooden cornice wnich has a
denticulated trieze boara pelow 1t that is turther enrichea by small brackets placea
directly apove the vertical boards that subdivide and help enframe the clapboard
panels below.

The steeple is crowned by a tall spire of complex design. The bottom section of the
spire consists of a painted wood shingle-ciad beliry whose lower half is square in
plan and slightly smaller in dimension than the lantern section below it. Eacn ot
the four corners of the belfry is then chamfered inward about haltway up, giving the
upper nhalf of the beltry an octagonal shape, and these four corners are then
embellishea with corner posts surmounted by tapered wood-shingle clad finials. A
tall semi-circular arcned opening is then centered on each of the tour main
elevations of the belfry and these openings are each fillea with iatticework
supported by wooden tracery having a bitoil shape. The octagonal upper portion ot
the pelfry is then surmounted by a shallow bracketed cornice which 1s 1nterrupted by
four blina gablets, one ot which 1s placed above each ot the four large openings
below. The steeple is then terminated by a tall, tapered octagonal plan spire
covered in wood shingles and the spire 1s crowned with a Ccross.

Both the 71.5-foot-long east and west-facing side elevations ot the nave were
partially altered when later additions were placed across parts of them. uriginally,
both elevations were 1identical in design and five-pays-wide and each bay was enriramed
in the manner previousiy described, giving both elevations a pilasterea appearance.
Both elevations were also asymmetrical in design as well, with the northernmost bay
ot each being wilder than the other four. In 1891 each ot these ten bays containea a
single tall semi-circular arched window opening, some of which were initially filled
with clear glass. The two northernmost bays on each elevation also had a single two-
over-two-light flat-arched double hung window piaced in the raised pasement story
below while a pair of these windows was placed below eacn of the winaows in the
remaining three bays.

The rear (south-facing) elevation of the nave is symmetrical and three-pays-wide. A
rectilinear plan ell forms the oversized center pay. The two side bays are eacn b.5-
teet-wide and each of these bays contains a single tall semi-circular arched memoriadi
window glazed in glass that is painted to depict scenes from tne Bible. ‘hese
windows each have a cut stone sill and help light the nave ot the church. ‘the 1li-
foot-deep by 26.5-toot-wide gable rooted ell projects outward from the center Ot thnis
elevation and its base rests on a raisea limestone basement story that 1s a
continuation of the coursed asnlar rock-tacea waukesha limestone basement sStory that
supports the nave. 7Tlhe only openings in the south-tacing elevation Or thnis ell are
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two small square one-light winaows placed in the ralsea basement sTtOory. H0th tne
east and west-tacing slde elevations ot the ell are each one-bay-wide, however, and
they are both enframed in the same manner as thne bays on the slae elevations ot tne
nave. Hoth of these bays also each contain a singie tall semi-circular archea wincow
opening tilled with painted giass as well.

In 1ts essentials, the 1interlior ot the 1l¥91 cnurch is still Ltargely extant today. lhs
nave ot the church originally consisted of a single large rectilinear room wnose
principal illumination came from the ten windows on the side elevations ana the two
windows plLaced in tne south wall of the nave. Banks Ot pews tace the altar, wnicn 15
placed in the center ot & large apse-like space that is itself centered in the south
wall of the nave. This space is defined by a large semi-circular archea opening in
the south wall ot the nave and 1S contalnea within the ell attachea to the rear
elevation of the nave. It was originally lit by the two winaows on tne sides ot the
ell. The north end of the nave is treated in a similar tashion. ‘The two-story tower
portion of the steeple creates a similar but narrower space that is centered in tne
north wall of the nave. This space is divided into two floors by a baicony that
crosses the north end of the nave. The first floor of this space serves as the
principal entrance vestibule of the church. Both floors of this space are 1it by the
windows placed in the walls of the steeple tower.

The gable roof of the nave 1s expressed in the interior of the church by leaving the
celling open up to the collar beams that hold the principal rafters of tne roo:f 1n
place. A fiat ceilling 1is then suspended on top Ot these beams, enclosing the space
located in the apex of the roof above. A wide wooden cornice extends along botn tne
long sides ot the nave where the walls meet tne sloplng portion ot the ceiling, anc
similar molding is placed at the junctures of the sloped and tiat portions of tne
ceiling along the lengths ot the puriins tnat are tTiea To the collar beams. kKurther
emphasis is given to the snhape ot the ceiling by using heavy wooden ribs to diviae
the celling into a grid. These six pairs ot ribs spring trom massive carved woodaen
imposts that are positioned on the centers of the walls between each of Tne WLNGOWS
on the side elevations ot tne nave, ana each of these 1mposts 1S decorated with an
incised trefoil placed in a circle. 'The juncture of these ribs with the purlins
above 1s also adecorated by placing a wooden penaant at each ot the intersections ot
the ceiling grid. The lower part of the nave is enriched by the use of a tait
wainscotting made ot thin, vertically placed tongue and groove boards that encilrcies
the base of the plaster walls.

once the church building was completed, no changes were maae to its exterior until
1924, ©Some changes, however, were made to the interior during this period.

The [originall] church building had a seating capacity of 480 and the commodious
basement was divided into three rooms. Une of these housed the Primary Department
of the Sunday School, one the main scheol, ana the third was used a&s a kitchen.
These rooms were used to conduct the activities ot the various organizations
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within the congregation. The total cost of the puilding amounted to the
remarkably low sum of $8000. During the pastorate ot Rev. Wm. vlenm, which
covered a period ot twenty years {1900-1920]), the churcn was egqulpped witn a
Wangerin-Weichardt organ at a cost or $2100; the rirst peli, wnich nad sustainecg a
crack, was replaced with a new one costing $475; the walls were redecorated;
stained glass memorial winaows were put in at a cost ot $66U; a new heating and
lignting system was installed ana the basement received a new hardwooda floor.?

975 i ¥

The church congregation continued to expand in size during the ensuing decades and
led to a decision in January, 1924 calling for the remodeling and renovating ot the
interior of the 1891 building and the constructlion Ot an annex.

Plans were dratted and subsequently carried out under the able supervision ot tne
architect, Mr. H. C. Haeuser. Following are the specitications for the ground
floor: The annex must provide a commodious committee room and a 33ix33 coot cnapel
separated from the main auaitorium by a wilson siiaing partition. ... 'The
basement of the annex was To house a large and moderniy equipped kitchen, a cloak
room, and the new neating plant, consisting ot two hot air blast turnaces ang a
three-horse power motor fan.°®

The annex was attached to the rear part ot the east-tacing elevation or the nave oL
the 1891 building and this resulted in the removal ot the three iett-nana bays ot
this elevation and the 10ss ot the windows they contalned. Haeuser TOo0K care to
design the annex in a style that was sympathetlc with the older bullaing ana he also
used identical materials in its constructlon. Consequentiy, the principal portion ot
the annex, the 33-foot-square chapel, bears a strong resemblance to the existing
building and the annex is considered to be a contributing addition ror that reason.
The chapel is one-story in height and it rests on a tall random ashlar waukesna
limestone foundation. The walls are sided in cream prick and they rise up to the
asphalt shingle-covered gabie roof apove whose ridgellne runs east-west and wnose
single gable end faces east. As pefits the chapel's subordinate status, 1ts walls
and ridgeline are both shorter than those of the nave to which they are attachea and
the walls are not enframed by pilaster strips as are the walls ot the nave.

> Dedication Souvenir. First Reformed Church, waukesha, Wisconsin, 1925, pg. /.
This is a tnirty-four page pamphlet publiished by the church on tne occasion or the
dedication ot 1its 1925 addition. A copy is in the collection of the Waukesna county
Museum in Waukesha.

& Ibid, pg. 1ll.
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The north-facing side elevation of the chapel is asymmetrical in design ana 1s two-
bays-wide. 7The lett-nana pbay features a singie tall tlat-archea window opening winicn
is filled with a painted glass memorial window. ‘fwo conventionali six-over-one-iignt
double nung windows are placed in the raised basement story just Delow ThRis Winaow
and a large stepped cream brick buttress that has a tall limestone base decorates tne
extreme left-nand eage ot the bay. The right-hand bay consists of a Y-toot-aeep by
lo-foot-long rectiiinear plan side entrance vestibule that is placed in tne corner
tormea DY The intersection Ot the main wali of the nave and the north wall or the
chapel. This vestibule has a shed roof covered in asphalt shingies whose slope
descenas from the root or the cnapel, and it 1S ailso sided 1n cream Drick. ''he east-
facing elevation of this vestibule contains a singie tflat-arched entrance door and
the triangular portion of wall below the siope ot the roof apove 1is tililea with
stucco and false halt-timber work. The north-facing elevation or the vestibule 1s
itself asymmetrical in design and two-bays-wide and it also has a smaller stepped
prick buttress decorating its extreme left-nand edge. The left-nand bay nas a singie
one-over-one-light segmental arched window that i1lluminates the entrance wnile the
right-hand bay has two vertically stacked windows of the same design; one of wnicn
illuminates the flight ot steps leading up to the chapel and the other the tiight
leading down to the basement.

The principal east-tacing facade of the chapel is one-bay-wide and it 1s also sided
in cream brick and rests on a tall limestone covered basement story. ‘This facade is
dominated by a large tripie window group consisting of tall semi-circular arched
window openings that contain painted glass memorial windows. 'The middle window of
this group is taller than the others and all three are joined by a common concrete
sill. Five evenly distributed six-over-one-light tlat-arched windows pierce the
length of the tall basement story beiow and the upper part ot the gable ena that
crowns this facade is filled with a panel ot stucco and false nalt-timper wOrkK that
is corbelled out trom the main wall surface and is supported by rive Smail DIackets
piaced pelow 1it.

The rear or south-tacing elevation otf the chapei is almost totally coverea dy a
rectilinear plan salient tnat is lu.5-feet-deep by 32-teet-long, 1S one-story in
height, ana is surmounted by a nip root.” ‘his aadition 1s sided in cream Drick, has
a raised basement story, and its maln floor is occupied by the committee room of the
church. 'The roof of this salient is covered in aspnalt shingles ana it 1s plerced by
a very tall cream brick chimney. ‘he east-tacing siae elevation of this saiient 1s
one-bay-wide and it has a small segmental-arched two-lilgnt window centeread 1n 1ts
basement story and two one-light casement windows are placed in the principal story
above. ‘'he south-tacing elevation ot the salient 1is three-bays-wide ana it 1is

7 ‘fne remainlng one tooT Ot the length ot this elevation ot the cnapelL CONS1sSTS Or a
tall stepped cream brick puttress, having a Limestone base. This puttress is
identical to the one occupying the same position on the north-tacing elevation ot the
chapel. :
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asymmetrical in design. The rignt-hand bay is ll-teet-wide and 1S essentiaily
igentical with the east elevation except tnat the basement Wlndow 1S not centerea con
the pay. The lerft-nand bay consists of a 6.5-foot-deep by L0-toot-wide nip-rooted
entrance vestibule that is equal 1n height to the main salient. ‘he

segmental-arched entrance door taces south ana it is flanked on the rignt py a one-
over-one-light window of similar design. Wnen added to the committee room portion ot
the salient this vestibule creates an L-pian structure and the middie bay or its
south elevation consists of a shorter tlat-rooted 6.5-foot-deep by lu-toot-long
salient that is placed in the juncture formed by the other two walls.

The interior of the chapel is modeled on that of the nave of the 1891 cnurch. The
entrance from the nave to the chapel is through a nearly tfull-width rectiiinear
opening that makes up the west wall of the chapel ana sliding accordion-style wooden
doors are used to separate the chapel frum the nave. ‘he most notable feature of the
chapel is the large triple group of memorial windows that is centered on the east
wall. Both the north and south walls are cevoid of ornament and ctheir spans are
pierced solely by the single painted glass memorial window on the north walli and by
secondary entrance doors placed at the west ends of each wall. 'hese stairs leaa
down to the entrance vestibules located on the side elevations of the cnapel.

The chapel ceiling is almost identical in design to that of the nave except that a
second set of planes has been added between the wall cornice and the collar beams.
This creates two sets ot east-west running pianes sloping away trom the fiat plane
that is positioned above tne coliar beams ang results in a flve-part composltion tnat
is almost the equivalent or a barrel vauit. Otherwise, the wall cornices, tne
purlins, the primary ribs, and the decorative elements used in the chape.l are aitl
identical in design to those used in the nave and they also divide the ceiiing
surtace into gria-iike patterns.

While the annex was being puiit, the 1891 church was also being renovatea under the
direction of H. C. Haeuser. ‘The specifications tfor this renovation stated that:

The auditorium was to be improved by extensive alterations such as the eniargement
of the choir loft, the extension of the pulpit plattform, improvements on tne
balcony, Upson-boarding and beaming of the ceiling, redecoration ot the walls,
refinishing of the pews, recarpeting of the floors, installation of four stained
glass memorial windows, a new lighting system, the overhauling ot tne organ anda
installing of an additional stop, and other minor changes.

The old basement was to be enlarged and improved by the removal of the olad
furnaces and all partition walls, the instailation ot two accordion-door
partitions (by means ot wnicn the large room might be converted 1nto three smai.er
compartments), the painting ot the walls, the installation or a new plumbing ana

- lighting system together with aaditlonal windows and other minor changes.
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The exterior of the old building was to be improved by roofing, painting,
installation ot new gutters and repairs to the tower.®

Work on the renovations to the original church and the new annex was compieted at &
cost ot $36,000 ana the annex was deaicatea on July Z1, 1925.® vpuring the following
years tew changes were made to the church itselt with the exception ot tne remodeilng
of the organ, which was rebullt with a new console, electritiea and eguipped With new
stops and chimes in 1951.+° The continuing expansion of the church congregation,
however, led to the purchase of a new parsonage on the corner or Wisconsin anc Maple
avenues Jjust atter the ena ot WWLL. ‘The old parsonage (built in Ll8Y2 for $i5UU) was
then reused as a parish house and the churcn ortice was Located 1n thls pullaing ana
Sunday School classes were also held there. By the mida t950s, though, tne church had
1U45 members and a geclsicn was made to erect a new education and ottice puilding on
the site of the old parsonage. ‘This building was razed 1n 1955 ana worx on the new
builaing was then begun.

1956 kducation Building Addition ana Alterations

The education building aadition 1s a T-plan puilding designea in a vernacuiar version
of the Modern Movement style. Its exterior walls are veneered in a reddish-orange
brick over a steel frame thdt is two-stories in height over a raised basement story
and the building is surmounted by a flat roof hidden by a plain, shailow Drick
parapet topped with concrete coping. This addition measures 48-feet-wiae Dy 5Z-teet-
deep and it is attached to the southwestern corner of the nave, covering the originai
right-hand bay of the nave's west-facing elevation in the process. All windows in
this addition are rectilinear in shape, and they have aluminum sash witah a sliding
middle section that gives each window the appearance of nhaving three horizontal
muntins when closed.

The building provides space for tnird, tourth, ritth and sixth grade rooms 1n the
basement, and ror the nursery and kindergarten departments on the £irst rloor.

The secona tloor houses the primary department, tne church office, pastor's stuay
and conference room.*+

These three tloors contain 10,000 square feet of space ana the puiiding was completed
at a cost of $1Z5,U00 and opened to the publlic 1in Uctober ot 1Yy5b. AL the same time,
the congregation also emparked on a program or renovating the origilnal churcn
building. The most evident result ot this program was the closing up or tne

® pegication Souvenir. r¥irst Rerormed Church, Waukesha, Wisconsin, 1945, pg. 1l.
® One Hundreth Anniversary: L8bo-1Y6b. Kvangelical and Retormea United Churcn or
Christ, wauxesha, Wisconsin, 1966, pg. b.

19 Waukesha Freeman. October 12, l95l.

13+ Ibid. October 6, lYhe.
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the original main entrance located in the base ot the steeple. Thls entrance was
then replaced by a new Z4-toot-long by lb-foot-wide rectliinear Dian riac-rocreg
entrance vestibule that covers most or the lower portion Ot the lert-nana bay on the
west elevation ot the nave.

The original entrance opening was closed with a recessed ilannon stone veneered panet
to which a large brushed tinish metal cross ot simple modern deslign was then
atfixed. Filling this opening in this manner did not seriously ertect the original
design of the church because the design 1s simple and the lannon stone relates well
to the more rough-hewn Limestone that covers the base ot the steeple. The new
entrance vestibule is more obstrusive, however, and its boxy appearance and its
stepped, tlat-rootf design clearly reflect its early 1950s date or construction.
Fortunately, this vestibule is also sided in lannon stone and the use 0Of thnis
material helps both to soften its modern design and allows it to relate to the nave
to which it is attached. The new vestibule 1s also very well built and high quaiity
stained glass is used to fill its window openings, providing an appropriate
transition into the main sanctuary.

In addition to these changes, the exterior of the ola cnurch was sanablastea and
repointed and the interior was repainted, new pews, hanging lights, ana tinoleum
flooring were added and new carpeting was placed over the aisles. A stainiess steel
handrail was also placed along the top of the balcony in the nave at tnis time.

Since 1956 the only change ot note to the cnurch has been tne repiacement ot tne
original organ with a new ilnstrument constructed by the Wicks Urgan Co. of Higniang,
lllinols in 1980. +This 1is "a two manual and pedal instrument with ZU ranks, i/
voices and 1169 pipes."*< '

The First German Ketformea Church nas long benerited rrom excellent maintenance
programs and it is currently in excellent condition. Never-the-less, the eaucation
buiiding aadition constructed in 1956 is considerea to pe non-contriputing to the
church tor NR purposes because of its unexceptional design and because 1T tfalls to
pass the SU year test for signiticance establisned py the Nationali Park Service.

+2 Waukesha kreeman. September 13, 1Y80.



g4, oStatement of signiticance

CerTitYing QtflClal has Considersd The S1GnltiCAnce ot THiZ DEOREFTY IR Felifion ©o
other properties: nationatly statewlae X _10Caiity
Applicable National Register (Criter:ia A 3 x C b
Criteria Considerations (&XCeptions) X A B C D X b G
Areas of 5Significance
{enter categories from instructions) Period otf Significance Signiricant Dates
ARCHITECTURE 1gyl-14925 1gdis+?
1Yy2b+~
Cultural Affiliation
N/A
Significant Person Arcnitect/Builder
N/A Hugo €. Haeuser/Architect®__ (agd:it:ion)

Georqge Ward/Contractor+®

State significance otf property, and justify criteria, criteria conslderations, and
areas and periods ot significance noted above.

The KFirst German Retormed Churcn :s being nominated to the National kegister or
Historic Places (NRHP) as a puilaing ot potentiaily Llocal signiticance unaer National
Register (NR) criterion C as atrected by criterion consideration A. KResearcn
designed to assess the churcn's potential for nomination was undertaken using the Nk
significance area of Architecture, a theme that is also identified in the State ot
Wisconsin's Cultural Resource Management Plan (CRMP). This research centerea on
evaluating the church by utilizing the High Victorian Gothic and Ltalianate
subsection ot the Architectural Styles study unit of the CRMP.*? Other research was
also undertaken to assess the importance of the church by -comparing it with other
churches in the city of waukesha. ''ne resuits of this research 1s detaliec Deiow anc
demonstrates that the First German Reformed Church is locally significant uncer
National Register criterion C as a tine exampie ot High victorian kclectic
ecclesiastical design. The original portion of the church was built in 18%i. It was
later expanded by the additlon ot a chapel designed by prominent Milwaukee churcn
architect Hugo C. Haeuser in 1925 ana by an attachea education bullding addition in
1956. The chuzrch tronts on Wisconsin Avenue and its LU8-foot spire has peen a visuai
landmark in the neighborhood for nearly a century. Almost all ot Waukesna's other
architecturally signiticant downtown churches are also located within a few Diocks ot
the first German church on either Wisconsin or North kast avenues where they are
intermixed with the surviving exampies of some of Waukesha's tinest nineteentn

13 Waukesha KFreeman. May 14, 1891, pg. 1. “rhere is also a carvea cornerstone datad
A.D. 1391 piaced near the base ot the left-hand corner ot the north-facing main
tacade ot the nave ot the church.
14 pedication Souvenir. First Retformed Church, waukesha, Wisconsin, 1925, pg. 15,
+3 [bid, pg. 1i.
ie Ibida, pg. 33.
17 Wyatt, Barbara (kd.). cultural Resource Management in Wisconsin. Historic
Preservation bivision, State Historical sSoclety ot Wisconsin, Madison, Wwisconsin,
l946. Vol. 2, Z2-10 (Architecture).

X see continuation sneet
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such as Milwaukee, Kenosha and Racine. Soon new lmmigrants pegan To travel iniand
and congregations Degan TO be estapiisned in centers away trom the coast :n
communities such as wauxesha.

The German Evangelical Retform Church (sic) was organized [(in Waukesha! in the year
1866, by Prot. H. Kurtz, who was sent to Waukesha from the interlor of Germany as
a missionary. Prot. Kurtz presidea over his fiock for two years, atTer whlch ne
retired to seek other tlelds, and was tollowed by Rev. H. Hanhart, who aiso
preachea to thls congregation tor two years, and now resiaes in Cincinnati, Unio,
where he was called to another parisn. L1n L87U, Rev. C. R. Hinske TOOK charge ot
the church, ana for six years preached ana lapbored with his people with much
success. The work of the church becoming too laporious, he reslgned niz charge
tor rest anad to regain tailing nealth., VPror. H. Kurtz 1s now (1l88Uj locatea at
Sheboygan, Wisconsin., and is one of the Principals or the TheoLogical Seminary in
that place. Rev. Frederick Kuenzler, who nas presided over the cCnurcn ror tne
last tour years, 1s a very popular preacher, ana a great tavorite among nis churcn
members. Since Rev. Mr. Keunzler nas had charge ot the cnurch, he nas 1lncreasec
its mempersnip to one hundrea and ninety COommunlcants. He nas a large sanpatn
scnooi, with an average attendance ot ninety, Over which ne presides on the
Sabbatn.

'The Trustees or the churcn are Louis Janke, Fer. Brueger ana Willlam Niedermelier.
The church has no indebtedness and is constantly increasing in mempers. ‘I'ne
socliety owns the building, wnich is a handsome large stone buliaing, puilt many
years ago as the Prairieville Academy, and was used afterwards as a remaie
Seminary. The grounds are spacious and liberally supplied with shade anc
ornamental trees, and are kept in very choice order. Adjoining the church is tne
parsonage, a neat lLittle dwelling, which is in keeping with the cnurch.

In speaking of this church, it is but proper to say that the project ot
organizing a German kvangelical Reform Church in Waukesha was ftirst suggestea by
Rev. Mr. Fliesnene, a somewhat noted exhorter, as early as l85Li; Dut tne mactter
was abandoned tor the time, and tor reasons he left for parts unknown.<=

The foregoing was written in 1380 and the old Prairieville Academy building 'tnen
occupied by the church was even at that date one of Waukesha's most historicaily and
architecturally signiticant buildings.

it lthe Acaaemy Builaing) was begun 1in June 1840, and is reputed to nave Deen the
tirst structure wholly of stone, erected in the state. 1t was the LlIStT acadsmy
building ot any kind in the state, and was erected by wm. 1. Biawell, &
schoolteacher without a school, ana Lyman Goodnow, the proprietor ot a stone

2% Buttertisia, Consul W. (kd.). ‘The HISTOry Or Waukesna Lounty, Wisconsin. Western
Historical Society, Chicago, Llllinois, l¥su, pg. bdb.
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-quarry with no market for its products. Morris L. Cutler gave two LOTS ror tn
site. The acacemy aadea largeiy to the respeCt 1n whiCh waukesha was ne:d Dy
neignbors ana became a prominent ilnstitution.

t~ (D

m

in l¥4b the management ot the institution was reorganized and tne name cnangeg to
Carroll Coitege, but 1n 1lY¥4Y tne name of brairieville Academy was restoreg. in
1¥4) the rirst term Or the territorlal CoOUrt was held 1n TNls bullaing. vuring
later years the builcing was used t£or all sorts of purposes. MOST OrL the churcn
socleties 1in town have at one time Or another occupiea 1it.=?

Under the leadership of Rev. Kuenzler tne relatively small acaademy pullaing was soon
hard pressed to contain the expanaing congregation Ot the church. Une reason ror
this expansion was the normal growth ot the congregation and Ot Tthe ClTy 0r wauxesna
during this period. The expansion was aiso aiced, nowever, by the enermous inilux o
German immigrants into Wisconsin between 1880 ana 1393. From the onset, tne services
. of the Kirst German Reformea Church ot waukesha were condgucted entireliy 1in the German
language and the congregation itself was almost entirely German in origin or rrom
German speaking areas of other European countrles. AS @ result, new arrilvals rrom
these countries felt at home in the church and they added their numpers to tne
congregation.

When the First German Ketormed Church or Waukesha was foundea in 1866 1t was unaer
the aegis of the newly tormed German synod of the Northwest. By 188l the growtn
within the Synod nad been such as to warrant splitting the Synod 1n TWO anc wauxesna
became part orf the Wisconsin-based Northwestern synod.<* Growth was rapida on tne
local level as well. 1In 1882 tne congregation autnorized the construction or 3 new
frame parsonage costing $150U whilch was located just to the west of Tne acaaemy
buiiding. Kkev. Kuenzler aiea in 189U ana he was replacea by Rev. Jacob Herzog. BY
this time the neea for & larger church hac become acute and the congregaticn
reluctantiy made the decision to Cear down the 0lad academy DUliding ana CONSTIUCT &
new one that could seat 48U. [t is the new church that is the supjeCt 0r tnis
nomination. 1t was built at a cost ot $800U ana dedicatea on Septemper L3, L¥Yi.

Rev. Herzog stayed in waukesha until L3900 at wnich time nhe was replaced DY Rev.
William viehm wno neld the position at waukesha until 1920, Dluring thls period

<3 waukesha Freeman. Aprii 9, 1lsyl, pg. L. This pulialng was situated On W1lsConsin
Avenue and was located on the exact same site as the present church. surviving
photograpns snow it to nave been a rectilinear pian two-story bulldlng nhaving a taill
raised pasement story and measuring approximately 45-teet-long by 3JU-teet-wide. ‘'he
exterior wails were constructea ot small, roughiy tasnioned timestone DLOCKS ana
these walls rose up to a hip root crowned by a cupola.

24 Wyatt, Barbara (kd.). <Cultural Resource Management in Wisconsin. Historic
Preservation Division, State Historical Society of wisconsin, Mmadison, Wlsconsin,
1986. Vvoli. 3, 17-4 (religion).
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Englisn was 1ntroduced both 1n teachlng and 1n preacning and the church Jraqually
began to move in the alrection or pilingual services. KRev. Ulehm removea to St.
Paul, Minnesota in 1YZ0 and his place was taxken by Rev. Henry settlage, wno remained
witn the churcn in waukesha untiti 1945.

buring this time, English became the predominant language and the churcn grew to
be one ot the largest and most intiuential 1n the South Wisconsin Synod. because
membership had increased from 271 to 716 an annex was added to tne cnurcn.
Dedicated on July 21, 1925, it cost $36,000.%°

The South Wisconsin Synod was the organizational district of the Rerormed (serman)
Church to which the Waukesha church belonged in 19Z5. 1In 1934 the Retormed (German)
Church merged with the German Evangelicai Synol@ ot North America, another
genomination of German Calvinistic 0origin, creating a hew denomination XNown as tne
Evangelical and Retormed Church.<® As a result, the wWaukesha church was renamea tne
First Evangelical ana kKerormea Church ot Waukesha.

On November 1, 1945, tne Rev. Ralpn P. Ley came with his wire ruth ana ramiLy as
our eighth pastor. Cnurch mempership continuea to grow, reachning lu4b communicanct
members in the mia 1950s. ... church services were broadcast tne second Sunday ot
the month and a church monthly entitlea the "Trumpet," was issuea with news or tne
congregation.

Soon atter Rev. Ley's arrival, it was aecided that the church tacllitles would
nave to be increaseda. F1rst, a house was purchased on the corner OL Wisconsin ana
Maple avenues ror a parsonage. 7Tne o0ld parsonage was remodeled 1nto & parisn
house, while the old garage was converted into a youth cottage. Several classes
0f tne Sunaay scnhool usea the parisn house ana the church was iocated there.

Plans were then made tor an educational building west ot the church on the silte oL
tne old parsonage.*’

The new educational builaing was built at a cost of S$125,000 and was dealcatec
September 30, 1956. In the following year, the KEvangelical and Reformed Church
merged with the Congregational and Christian Churches to torm the United Church oz
Christ and the Waukesha church was renamed the Evangelical and Retormead Churcn ot
Christ--the name it pears togay. The church continued to grow tollowing the merger
and in 1962 the present pastor, Rev. Howard XKusler, became the ninth pastor to serve
this nistoric church.

%% (ne Hunareth Anniversary: l¥bb-1Y66. kvangelical and Retormed Unitea cChurch oz
Christ, waukesna, Wisconsin, LY6b, pg. b.

2s Wyatt, Barpara (ka.). cultural Resource Management in Wisconsin. H1Storic
pPreservation Division, State Historical society of Wisconsin, Madison, wisconsin,
1986, Vol. 3, 17-5 (Reliigion).

27 One Hundreth Anniversary: l8bb-lybe, op. cit., pg. 7.
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Architecture

The original portion ot the KF1IST German kKeformea Church 0L wauxesnha Was DUlit
1891 to the design Of an unknown arcnltect and 1ts architecturali signlticance
primariily in its being a tine, largely intact example or High victorian ectiec
ecclesiastical aesign and waukesna's only church designed in this style.

in
ties
T1iC

High Victorian eclectic 1is just one ot tne many styiistic designations that nave peen
developed to dlfrerentiate Detween the bewildering profusion or new arcnitectural
Styles that developea 1n thls country between tne end Of the Civii war and tiae turn-
oft-the-century. ‘fhils span or years 1S known as the Late Victorian perioa ana some Ot
the styles that originated withln this period, such as tne Hign Victorian Gothic
Style anc the High Victorian Itallanate Style, are clearly later examples 0oL Revival
styles which haa thelr origins earller in the century. Both 0f tnese styies nave
tfeatures such as pointed arch windows and overscaited and nignly elaporate cornices
that make them relatively easy to 1dentity. Unlike other Late Victorian styles,
however, examples of High Victorian eclectic are more difficult to characterize since
their most distinguishing characteristic is the eclectic use ot elements compoinea
trom other styles. This aimost exuberant borrowing of stylistic elements 1s also a
characteristic of the period as a whole and one that is mentioned in the opening to
the High Victorian Gothic and [talianate subsection of the Architectura. Styies thneme
portion of the CRMP.

‘During the High Victorian period ({1865-1900j, eclecticism was tne oraer or the
day. Features of Gotnic Revival, Italianate, kRomanesque, Or Secong Emplre were
otten compbined, resuliting in plcturesque racades.<®

Waukesha possesses two fine churches aesigned in tne High Victorian Gotnic styie: tne
First Baptist Churcnh (l87z), designea py prominent Milwaukee arcnitect KEQward
Townsend Mix; and St. Joseph's Catholic Churcnh (L88¥8), designed by Ch1Cago arcnitect
A. vruiding. Both of tnese churches were placed on the NK 1n lyss ana thnelr massive,
heavily articulated limestone tacades and pointed arch windows mark them as typical
examples ot the style. ‘'he original i8Yl portion of the kirst verman Rerormeg
Church, on the other hana, is the work of an unknown architect, and 1ts design
appears almost restrained in comparison with :1ts High Victorian Gothic
contemporaries. Never-the-less, while 1ts design 1s not unusually elaporate the
First Hetormed churcn stiil cContains a mixture oI teatures that can only be
classitiea under the somewnat amorphous heading of the High Victorian sciect:ic

style. Ail or the winaows, Q00rs, and other openings on the nave ana steepie Of tne
First German church have semi-clrcular arches, a characteristic or Ttne rRomanesque
Revival stylie. The upper portion of the bell chamber of the steeple, however,

“s Wyyatt, Barpara (ka.). (Culturai Resource Management 1n Wisconsin. Historic
Preservation Division, State Historical Society of Wisconsin, Madison, Wisconsin,
198b. Vol. ¢, £4-10 (Arcnitecturej.
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is embellished with four gapblets having steeply SLOpPiNg IrOOLsS and with

corner pOsStsS surmounted wlth exaggerated tapering tinials, poth elements That are
more characteristic ot the Gothic Revival style. Compining these eiements into a
picturesque wnole points TO the hand Ot an experienced architect ana one wno was 31s0
able to acnieve a satlsractory result witnin the congregation's rather modest 358UUU
budget.

The KFirst German Ketormed Churcn's decision to puild a new cnurch in 189l came at a
time wnhen most of the other pioneer churcnes in Waukesha were also experiencing
growth problems and were solving them in a simitar tashion. The rirst congregation
to demoliish 1ts original church and rebuild was the ¥First Baptist Churcn (247
Wisconsin Avenue, NRHP-1Y983) in 187Z. 7They were followed by the congregations ot St.
Matthias Episcopal Church (ll1l East Main Street, NRHP-i983), whicn added a chapei to
its 1¥51 Gothic Revival style church in 1887; sSt. Josepn's Cathoiic Churcn (si¥ Nortn
East Avenue, NRHP-1983), whose original church was ailmost completely repiacea Dy the
much larger present church built between l885-1890; Kirst Methodist Caurcn (iZi
Wisconsin Avenue, NRHP-1983), whose earlier churches were gestroyed by Llre and wnose
massive Richarasonian Romanesque style was puilt between lsY5 ana lsvs; ana the K1lIsStT
congregational Church (100 East Broadway, nomination penalng), who rebullt ana
enlarged tneir 1867 church in 1899.<°

By 1920 the need for more space was again being aimost universally felt among
Waukesha's churches. 'he rirst congregation to buila was that ot St. Josepn's
Catholic Church, wnich constructed a Large new school building next coor to tie
ex1sting church in 1917. ‘ney were roilowed DY The K1rst {ongregational thurcn ana
the ¥irst Baptist Church, poth of wnhich adadea annexes to thelr main bduiigaings 1in
192z, ana by the rirst Metnodist Churcn, wnich aaded an annex in 19YZ5.-“ ‘Tne
architect for the kirst Metnodist Church annex was H. C. Haeuser, a rising young
Milwaukee architect who was also chosen Dy the congregation or the KISt yerman
Reformed Church to design thelr new chapel annex, wnich was also DUlLiT in 1925.

Hugo Charles Haeuser (ls82-1951) was a native or Milwaukee wno bDegan n1s
arcnitectural career as an apprentlce drattsman in the Milwaukee arcnitectura: rirm
ot kerry and Clas 1n L¥9Y8. He was subDsequently employed in the otrice or Miiwaukee
architect Alexander C. Eschweiler where he eventually became chier aesigner perors
starting his own practice 1in 1919.3* Like most architects, Haeuser's ear.y practice
was a varied one and although his office was in Milwaukee he executed a number Ot

2% Howard, Needles, Tammen, ana Bergendoft. Spring City's Past: A Thematic History
of Waukesha and the Final Report of Waukesha's intensive Resources survey. Howarc,

Needles, ‘'ammen, and Bergendotr, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, 198Z, pgs. b3-14. °

4° [ntensive survey Forms. Howard. Needles, ‘fammen, and Bergendotr, lYsZ. Un rile
with the State Historic rreservatlon Utrice locatec in the State Historical society
of Wisconsin, Madison, Wisconsin.

2+ Miliwaukee Journal. ucteper 19, 1lYyoi. UDituary or H.C. Haeuser.
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projects in Waukesha in the first decade of hls practice. His earliiest Known project
in waukesha was the design in 192U-19Z1 of the new National gxchange Bank sullaing
(309-311 W. Main Street, NkHP-1983) completed in L¥/l.#< in the same year Haeuser
also proaucea a deslgn O tne remodeling OI the wauxesna Lounty UISTIICT b COURTIY
schoolnouse?? ana in tne roilowlng year ne was cnosen to 4gesign major agaitions ana
alterations tror the Kirst Presbyterian Church of waukesna (WsuY Martin Street).- ™ 'tne
year 1922 also saw Haeuser designing an d-room $>U,UUU adaition to tne kittn wara
school in waukesha as well but 1t was the success Or his Presbyterian churcn project
that cemented his reputation in the city.2?® Haeuser began to make 3 speclaity ot
churcn design around tnis time and in 1Y25 ne aesigned aaaitions tor notn tne Kirst
Methodist Church in Waukesha and the Kirst German reformed Church. His design ror
the KRetormea Church 1in particular was a consclous ertort at Dlenalng the new wlth the
ola within the trameworx Or a modest budget. Uslng the same materials as were useg
in the 1891 churcn, Haeuser tasnioned a chapel aadition that nad Just enougn 0I such
fudor Revival style getalls as stucco and halt-timper workKk panels and corner
buttresses to give the chapel a somewhat more modern period revival appearance wnlte
still respecting the design and scale ot the original work. fThe result 1is an
exercise in contextually sensitive eclecticism that 1s completely appropriate tor an
addition to a design such as the First German Reform Church and as a consequence, tne
chapel is considered to be a contributing addition to this church.

Haeuser became a well known specialist in church design in the Miawest and at tne
time of his adeath in 1951 his obituary noted that he had designea over 3UU cnurches
in Wisconsin and elsewnere. ‘Thils number inciuded his tfine small stone church for tne
First Churcn ot Christ Scientist in waukesha (194l) located at oU0 Maplie Avenue
around the block from the First German Retormea Church,3® ana he was especially noted
tor his design for Mount Olive Lutheran Church in Minneapolis, Minnesota. At the
time of his death Haeuser had three churches under construction inciuding the Hales
Corners Lutheran Church, the Kirst Evangelical uUnited Brethern cnurcn at NOrth detn
street and West Capitol Drive in Milwaukee, ana his biggest project, vur saviour's
Lutheran Church, located at Nortn 3lth Street and West Wisconsin Avenue, also 1in
Milwaukee.

Waukesha's enormous popuiation growth tollowing WWil once again created a neea :or
more space in area churches and the need was especially acute ror education ana
school annexes to house the chilaren ot the post war bapy boom. Thus, the tate

#%Z waukesha kreeman. Uecember 3U, 1YZU, pg. 5. lncluades a rendering ot tne Dank.

33 [pbid. October 20, 1Y921. 1lncludes a rendering ot the scnooi.

3« [bid. March 2, 1yZz, pg. 1. lnciudes a renaering or the cnurch.

4% {bia. march 9, 1922, pg. l.

se Loerke, Jean renn. The sSpires ot Wwaukesna: ‘'en Churches PLus Une. May, 1vyi>, pg.
2. A two page annotatea listing written by the dlrector ot the Wwaukesha County
Museum.



NPS Form LU-vUua

(Rev. 8-86)
WizCconsih Word Processor Format

Approved 2/81/

United States bepartment ot the Interior
National Park Service

NATIUNAL REGLISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

CONTLINUATION SHEET

First German Rerormea Churcn, Waukesha, waukesha cCounty, wisconsin
section number 8 rage 8.9

1950s saw every church ailong Wisconsin and North kast Avenues coOnsStructing a school
wing to meet this need. ‘The tirst congregation to 4o SO was St. Matthlas 1n tYb51.
They were tollowed by the First German kRetorm Church in Ly5b, ST. Josepn's Ln L3235,
both First Baptist ana rirst Methodist 1n 1Y5Y; and the Kirst Congregational churcn
in 1Y00.2Y All of these aaaitions are substantial in size, being at lLeast equal in
dimension to the main church building they serve, and each has at Least TWO STtoriles
ot usable space. Their placement varies, depending on the conrfiguration and size ot
the lots available to the indiviaual congregation involved, but 1in every case tne
aadition 1s placed contiguous to the existing church and it is connectea directly to
the older structure.

None of these aaditions are in themselves arcnitecturally signiticant nor ao they
pass the 50 year rule tfor eligibility established by the National Park service.
Consequently, they are all considered to be non-contributing additions to tneir
respective churches and the education wing of the First German Reform Church is no
exception. It is clear from viewing the other churches in the area already on tne
NRHP, however, that the existence of such an addition is not in and of itseift
detrimental to NR listing.

Like Waukesha's other architecturally signiticant High Victorian churches, the First
German church still retains most of its historic exterior appearance despite the
presence ot subsequent additions. Tnis significance is turther ennpancec Dy the
largely intact interior ot the church and both the interior ana the exterior have
benefittea by the excellent maintenance providea by the congregation.

The year 1991 marks the one-hundredth anniversary Ot the construction 0r the ¥First
German Reformed Churcn and this pullaing continues to serve 1ts nlstoric runction as
the house ot worship or the aescendants ot the congregation that built it. ‘lne
church aiso serves as both a visual and as an ilnstitutional ifandmark in 1ts
neignborhood and its continued presence in this location has been an infiuentiai
tactor in stabilizing the resicential area around 1it.

Archeological Potential

The extent of possible archeological resources on thls site 1s unknown at tne present
time. It is known that an important earlier builaing, the Prairieville Academy,
occupied this site trom 1840-1¥Y9U, but this builading was saiQd TO nave oCCuplea the
exact site of the present church, a contention supported by Sanporn-rerris rire
insurance maps of the block.-2® Consequently, any trace ot the older builaing was
probably destroyed wnen the newer and much larger basement of the present church was
excavated. ‘This and later excavation activities would almost certainly nave also
destroyed any artifacts assoclated with pre-European cuitures located on Tnls sSite.

37 lntensive Survey korms. Howara. Needles, ‘fammen, and Bergendofi, L982.
38 Sanborn-Perris fire Insurance Maps of waukesha, Wisconsin. Sanborn-rerris Map
Company, New York, NY, 1330, 1835, 192z9.
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Butterriela, consul W. (kd.).

Historical society, chicago, lLliinoils, L3380

Dedication sSouvenlr. Flrst Rerormed Church

Previous aocumentation on tiie (NPS):

preliminary determination ot
inaividual listing (36 CKFR b67)
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Register
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the National Register

designated a National Historic
Landmark ,

recorded by Historic American
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recorded by Historic aAmerican
Engineering RrRecord #
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western
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X__Gee continuation sneet

Primary location of aaaitiocnal qata:
X State Historic preservation otfrfice
_____Other state agency
Federal agency
__ Local government
__ University
Uther
Specity repository:

L0. Geographical Data

Less than 1.YU acre

Acreage ot property

UTM References

A _1/6 3/9/8/3/5/0 4/9/6/2/3/9/0 B __/ [ L L 1/ [ L L [ f/
sone gasting Nortning " Zone kasting Nortning
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See continuation sneec

Verbal Bounaary bescription

The land the churcn and 1ts additions occup
W 37" of S 150' of Lot 2 & E 23' of Lot 10,
Village of Waukesha.

1es is described as: tne N 1i5U' of Lot
Block 5 ot Cutler's Addition to the

Zy

Part ot the SkM & NK%, Section 3 TbN, K19E.

See continuation sheet

Boundary Justitication

The boundaries enclose that parcel of land
with the First German Reformed Church of Wa

which has been historicaliy associatea
ukesha.

See continuation sneet

1l. korm Prepared By

name/titile ‘‘imothy K. Heggliand/Consultant

For: ''ne City plan Commission, City ot Waukesha

organization _201 Delafield St. Waukesha, Wl date

street & numper _l_lLangdon Street, Apt. 4Ub teilepnone

Clty Or town Madison

January ¢3, 199U
(bUY) £51-945U
state Wi Z1p code __ 53/U3
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Howara, Needies, ‘Yammen, and Bergendott. HISTOriC XESOUICES 0L Waukesna Muitipie
Resources NRHP nominatlion torm. Seprtemper, LY¥Z.

Howara, Neeaies, ‘tammen, and sergenaort. 3Spring CITY's vasSt: A ‘‘nematlcC HISTOrY 0Or
waukesna and the Final Report of Waukesha's intensive resources sSurvey. Howara,

Needles, Tammen, and Bergendotf, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, LtY42.
Loerke, Jean Penn. ‘'he Spires ot Waukesha: ‘len Cnurches ¥ius One. May, 19is.

Miiwaukee Journal. October 1y, 1y5l.

.

ne_Hund 1V : 1lubb-196b. kvangelical ana Reformed Unitea Churcn orc
Christ, Waukesha, Wisconsin, l9Yb6b.

sanporn-Perris Fire Insurance Maps of Waukesha, Wisconsin. Sanborn-Perris Map
Company, New York, NY, 1s390, 18395, 1929.

Waukesha Freeman. Aprii 9, 13891; May l4, 1891; January 7, 1897; vecemper sy, L9YZiU;
Octoper 20, 1921; March £, 192Z; Marcn 9, 1922; uctober 1z, 195L; Octopber b, iY5b;
Septemper 13, 1980. :

Wyatt, Barpara {(Ed.). Cuitural Resource Management in Wisconsin. H1Storic
Preservation Livision, sState Historical Soclety ot Wwisconsin, Madison, Wlsconsin,
1946.
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